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Kangundo Level 4 Hospitol (Machakos County Government)
Annual Reporl and Finoncial Statements for The l'ear Ended JAh June 2022

(a) Background information

\Iission

Kangundo Hospital is a level 4 hospital established under gazette notice number 27 of Januwy l9g9 and isdomiciled in Machakos countv- ttnder the Health Depariment. The trosfitat is govemed by a HospitalManagement Team.

(b) PrincipalActivities

The principal activity/mission/ mandate of the hospital is to_provide quality healthcare to the people ofKangundo Sub county and its environs by preventing, cont.oliing rra l.J"uting disease.Further, the facility is tasked to rehabilitateand promote healthyiiring qv ensuring quick accessibility ofefficient, equitable, affordable and sustainable health sen.ices
\''ision

[!rhil** 
of excellence in primary and secondary health services provision, training and primarv care

Kangundo level 4 hospital focuses on health, development with a mission of creating an affordable efficienthealthcare system, balancing preventive and curative tneasures and establishing an enduring public privateparhership.
(c) Key Management

The hospital's management is under the follorving ket, organs:

County department of health
Board of Management
Accounting Offi cer/ Medical Superinrendent
Management

(d) FiduciaryManagement

The key management personnel who held office during the financial Year ended 30th June 2022 and whohad direct fi duci ary. respon si bi I i i.v-- were :

l Dr Lavrnia Mayabi
Head of Finance CPA Benlamrn Katola
Head ofSupph Charn Geollrey Kelr

.+ Head of -Admrnistration Alice Nyamai
Head of Nursin_s{ Sen ices Lucy Ngulu.kyo

III

No. Designation Name
Medical Superintendent
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Kangundo Level 4 Hospilal (Machakos CounA Government)
..lnnual Report arrd Financial Statements .for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

(a) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

- Clinical Research and Standards Committee
- Audit committee
- Risk Committee
- County Assembly
- Parliamentarycommittees
- Other oversight committees

t\,



Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machakos Coun
.l nnual Report ond Financial Statenrcnts -for

4' Governntent)
The l'eor Ended 3Ah June 2022

(d)

(e)

(0

(g)

(b) Entif,v Headquarters

P.O. Box 1002-90t t5
Kangundo Bui I ding,4lou se,pl aza
Kangundo Road/Highual
Machakos, KENYA

(c) Entitl'Contacts

Entitv Bankers
Co-operative Bank of Kenr.a
P.o.Box 48231 - 00100
Nairobi, Keny.a

Independent Auditors
Auditor General
Office of Auditor General
Anni versalv Towers, Institute Wav
P.O. Box 3008.1
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Ken;*a

Telephone: \+254) 7 I 6O4j 29 5
E-rnail : kangundohospital.gmail.com
Website: w-wrv go.ke

Principal Legal Adviser
The Attornel.General
State Law Office
Haram bee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

CounQ- Attorney
County law office
P.O. Box. 1996-90100
Machakos, Kenya
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Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machokos Coun fl'Government)
Annuol Repon and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

l. The Board of Management

N{EDICAL SUPERI\TENDENT

Dr Daniel Katua

PAIO 200500r239

; Master of Medicine in Family

Medicine

- Bachelor in Medicine and

Surgery'

- Senior Management Course

Qualifications;

2
Secretary to the Hospital Management

Richard Yotta

Cornrnittee

HEALTH AD]\IINIS TRATIVE OFFICER
Qualifications;

,- Bachelor of Arts in

Anthropology.

- He has l8 years' work

experience

\1

Ref
Directors Details
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3. i\Ianagement Team

Dr. Daniel Katui
Medical Superintendent

2 Benlamin Katola
Head offinance

3 Geoffiel Keli
Head ofsupply chain

4 Richard Yotta
Head of administration

Lucy Nguluky'o
Head of Nursing

\,1 i

Ref Management
Detaits



Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machakos Counq' Government)
.4nnual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 30h June 2022

4. Chairman's Statement

The hospital did not have an active board ofmanagement in the year under review

5. Report of The Chief Executive Oflicer
We are gradually improving in our financial perfonnance. The Universal Health Coverage roll out
through National Social Health lnsurance Fund u'ill significantlv improve our revenue collections
because we envision all community members will have an NSHIF (NHIF) card and all hospital bills will
be re-imbursed through this card.

our performanc€ currently is facing several challenges:- most of the hospital clients or patients have no
NHIF card, commodities (pharmaceuticals, non-pharmaceuticals, laboratory reagents, radiological
consumables and dental supplies) shortages, human resources shortages (especially medical officers,
clinical officers, nurses, laboratory technologsts, radiographers/sonognaphers, health information and
records officers, etc), inadequate infrastructure, lack ofintegrated biometrically automated health records
and information management system, and inefficient senice delivery. processes.

Going forward we will continuallv engage within the department of health and emergency services and
the county govemment aiming to improve and overcome some of the above challenges. Resources will
be prioritized to critical and emergency ,ireas as rvell as areas u,ith potential of giving us maximum
outcomes on key performance indicators.

our focus still remains on infectious disease like diarrhea, respiratory infections, road traffic accidents,
HIViAIDS' Tuberculosis, helminths and other colnmon infections affecting our catchment community.
The non-communicable component of our morbidir-v- burden is also quite huge and significant and
substantial focus and resources will continue being prioritized on tackling these diseases like diabetes
hlpertension, cancer, COPD, heart and kidney diseases, asthma, road traffic e accidents, drugs and
substance abuse' and others. Preventive promotive and rehabilitate health has been lagging behind in our
priorities and will be a big game changer in health in the future. we hal.e to invest in primary Health
Care for us to reap the be.efits and dividend which accrue frorn pre'ention of diseases.

The financial performance need of the hospital needs in'estment in areas like biometric automation of the
facility improvement firnd collection system. additional efficient hardware (computers), additional human

vlll



Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Mochokos Coun$,Government)
"l nnual Report and Financial Statementsfor The l'ear Ended 3(lh June 2022

resources and training of the revenue clerks to realize full potential. we also need a 1aw passed throughthe county assembly to amend the public finance managem ent act 201 2 al lowing the resources generate
by hospitals to be 100% ploughed back to these senerating hospitars to improve health services.

The future looks bright for the hospital and we look fbrw,ard to betrer performance in the subsequentquarters and years.

Dr. Katua, K. D.
Medical Superintendent
Kangundo Level 4 Hospital

1\
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County Government)
afor The Year Ended 3Aa June 2022

6. Statement of Performance Against predetermined objectives

Section 164 Subsection 2 (f) of the Public Finance Management Act. 2012 requires the accounting officer
to include in the financial statement, a statentent of the Countl, Governrnent enttty,s perfonnance against
predeterm ined objectives.

Kangundo Level 4 Hospital has -Y (provitlc rhe strategic piltar.g strategrc pillars/ themeVissues and
objectives within the current Strategrc Plan for the FY 2021.2022. These strategrc pillarv themes/ issues
are as follows;

Pillar /theme/issue I

Pillar/theme/issue 2

Kangrndo Level 4 Hospital develops its annual uork plans based on the abovexpillars/Themes/lssues.
Assessment of the Board's performance aeainst its annual u.ork plan is done on a quarterlv basis. The
Kangundo Level I Hospital achieved its perfomance targers set for the Fy 202112022 period for its
202112022 strategic pillars, as indicated in the diagram below:

7. Corporate Governance Statement

The hospital does not have a board of management therefore no board rneetings were held during the yearended June 30,2022

8. Management Discussion and Analysis

The management should.make use of tables. graphs, pie charts and other descriptive tools to make theinfonnation as understandable as possible. The"iniormation should show a trend for the last there years.Sorne of the details to be included under this section are.

ClinicaUoperational performance

Bed capacity of the lrospital
overal I patient attendance during the year for both inpatient and outpatientAccident and Emergency attendance
Specialised clinic attendance
Average length of sta1, for in patient

\

Pillar/ theme/ issue I

Pillari theme/ issue I

Strategic
Pillar/Theme/Issues

Objective Key
Performance
Indicators



Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (iltachakos County Government)
.1n nual Reporl and Financial Statenrents for The l'esr Ended 3Uh June 2022

- Surgical theatre utilisation. (nurnber of operations over a period of time)Sponsorships and partnerships

Financial performance that inctudes

- Bed occupanc) rate
- Mortality rate

revenue soufces-
utilisation of funds etc

discussion and anar.v.si.t shourtr he signetr hv the Chief' Exearive olfic.er Medical
17'he ntanagentent

Superintendent)

\r
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9. Environmental and Sustainability Reporting
Two-to-three pages)

Kangundo Level 4 Hospital exists to transfomr lives. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy. putting the
client/citizen first, delivering health services, and irnproving operational excellence. Below is an outline
of the organisation's policies and actirities that promote sustainabilitv.

i) Sustoinability saakgt and proJile

l.he top managemenl especialll'the acc'ounling o//icershottltl ntake re/brence to su.rtainahle ef/ons,
broad trends in political and ntacroeconomic a//bcting .iltstainability priorities. re/brence ro
i n I e rnat i on a I b e st p ra ct i c e.s an d ke.t. ct c. h r et, e n e n t s a n cl f a i I u r a.

ii) E nviro nmentol performonce

outline clearly' cnvironmental polic.t guiding the ortrianisatron. provitle cviden<.c of the polic-v-.
outline successes, shortcomingt, ef/ort.s to manage hiodivcr.tir-1,, waste nlanagemenr policy ond
e.flbrts ro reduce environnental inpoct of the organi.ralron,.s prctducls.
iii) Employee welfare

Oive account oJ'the policie.s guitling the hiring proces.s and whether the|, 1qlrc into account lhe
gender ratio' whelher lhel'lake in stakeholder engagcments and hov, olien they are improvetl.
L'xplain elfons ntade in inprot'ing skills and managrng Larecr.\. appraisal antl reward systems. .l-he

organisalion should also disclose thcir polic.t on safery, ond compliance ,,uith Occapati.nal Safety
and Health Act ol 2007. (OSHA.)

iv) Market place practices_

l'he organisation shouItl outIine it.s. a/fbns. to;

al Responsible competition pructice.

Explain how the or5;anisation ensures re.tponsible contpetition practices with i.ssucs like
ant t-corrupt ion. respon.sible political
compel ilor.t.

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations
l:xplain how the ctrganisati.n ntaintatns g<tod husirte's pracrices, oncr treats
suppliers responsibrl: b), honouring c.onrra(.t s and respcc.rtng payntenr pracrices.

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement

Outline eflbns to maintain ethrcal marketing practtc,e.s.

dl Product stewadship

involt,ement. ./air competition, and respect .for

tls own

\ll
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.-1 nuaI and Financial Statenrcntsfor The l'ear Ended 3Ah
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June 2022

Outline eflbns to saJbguard consunrcr rights and itttcrest.s.

Co rp o rat e S o c ia I R esp o n s i b i I ig. / C o nt m u n ig. E ng a g e me nts
The organisation gives detairs o/ ('st? acttvities curried out in the year and the impact rts
the socie|" ()ive et'idence o.l c'ontntunit.r' engagentent tncluding charitable givtng (cash oncl
materiall, (lorporate Soc.ral lnta:;ltncnt and othcr fitrtn.s o/.communtt-v engagement.s.

\lll



Kangando Level 4 Hospital (Machakos County Go vernnrent)
Annual Report o nd Fi nancial Statements The l'ear Ended 3At June 2022-for

l0.Report of The Board of iVlanagement

The Hospital did not have an active managernent board in trre year Lrnder review

I l.Statement of Board of lVlanagenrent's Responsibilities

The Hospital did not have an active managernent board in the r.ear under reriew

\tv
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KANGUNDO LEVEL 4 HOSPITAL FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022. COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF MACHAKOS

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Managemenl Acl,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kangundo Level 4 Hospital -
County Government of Machakos set out on pages 1 to 51, which comprise of the

Report of the Auditor-General on Kongundo Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Government
of Machakos



statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2022 and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Kangundo Level 4 Hospital - County Government of
Machakos as at 30 June, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and comply with the Health 4ct,2017, Public Finance Management Act,
2012, County Governments Act, 2012 and the Machakos County Services 4c1,2021.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Unsupported Trade and Other Payables

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements
reflects trade and other payables balance of Kshs.33,736,690. However, included in the
balance was Kshs.16,938,258 whose supporting schedules were not provided for audit.
Further, documents provided indicated that the payables were long overdue, some dating
back to February 2014 contrary to Regulation 42(2) of the Public Finance Management
(County Governments) Regulations, 2015 which requires the payables/pending bills to be
a first-charge in the subsequent budget of an entity. ln addition, the Management did not
provide the measures which had been put in-place to settle these long outstanding bills.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of trade and other payables
balance could not be confirmed.

2. Non-Disclosure of Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects Nil property, plant and equipment balance.
However, review of Hospital records and physical inspection revealed various assets
including land, buildings, motor vehicles, furniture, computers and equipment which were
not disclosed in the financial statements. Further, the ownership documents for land were
not provided for audit.

3. UnconfirmedlnventoriesBalance

The statements of financial position reflect Nil inventories balance as disclosed in Note
30 to the financial statements. However, there was no evidence of conducting the annual

Report of the Auditor-General on Kangundo Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Government
of Machakos
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ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and ownership of property, plant
and equipment balance could not be confirmed.



stock take to confirm the quantities, value and status of closing inventory balances as at
30 June,2022

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of Kangundo Level 4 Hospital Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Basis for Conclusion

1. Late Submission of Financia! Statements

The annual report and financial statements for period ended 30 June, 2022 were
submitted on 03 March ,2023 five (5) months after statutory deadline. This was contrary
to Section a7() of the Public Audit Act, 2015 which states that the financial statements
required under the Constitution, the Public Finance Managemenl Acl,2012 section 84(3)
and any other legislation, shall be submitted to the Auditor-General within three (3)
months after the end of the fiscal year to which the accounts relate.
ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Identification, Collection and Accounting of Own Generated Revenue

The statement of financial performance reflects rendering of services- medical service
income of Kshs.29,051,890 as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements. However,
the following unsatisfactory matters were noted:-

Report of the Auditor-General on Kangundo Level 4 Hospitalfor lhe year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Government
of Machakos
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ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and valuation of the inventories
balance could not be confirmed.

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.



2.1 Failure to Transfer Revenue to the County Revenue Fund Account

The Hospital did not transfer the generated own source revenue to the County Revenue
Fund Account for approval by the Controller of Budget before withdrawal. This was
contrary to Regulation 81(1-3) of the Public Finance Management (County Governments)
Regulations, 2015 which states that a receiver of revenue shall promptly deposit into the
County exchequer account all receipts due to the County Revenue Fund.

2.2 Failure to prepare Quarterly Revenue Reports

During the year under review, the Hospital did not provide evidence to show that the
reports were prepared and submitted to the County Treasury with a copy to the Auditor
General as per the requirement of Regulations 64(1) of the Public Finance Management
(County Governments) Regulations, 2015 which requires the Accounting Officer or
receiver of revenue or collector of revenue to prepare a quarterly report not later than the
1Sth day after the end of the quarter.

2.3 Revenue Safeguards and Controls

During the year under review, there was limited segregation of duties over revenue
collection process as one person received revenue, issued receipts and carried out the
banking of revenue. This was contrary to Regulation 63(1(a)) of the Public Finance
Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015 which states that an Accounting
Officer and a receiver of revenue are personally responsible for ensuring that- (a)
adequate safeguards exist and are applied for the prompt collection and proper
accounting for, all county government revenue and other public moneys relating to their
county departments or agencies.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Deficiencies in lmplementation of Universal Health Coverage

Review of Hospital records and interviews on verification of services offered, equipment
used and medical specialists in the Hospital at the time of audit in April,2024 revealed
that the Hospital did not meet the requirements of Kenya Quality Modelfor Health Policy
Guidelines due to deficits in some of the staff cadres in the authorized establishment.

Staff Requirements
Level4

standard
Numberin

Hospital Variance
Percentage

olto

Medical officers 16 o 7 44
Anesthesiologists 2 1 1 50
General surgeons 2 3 (1) (50)

Gynecologists 2 2 0 0

Pediatrics 2 1 1 50
Radiologists 2 3 (1) (50)

Registered community
health nurses

75 102 (27) (36)

Totals 101 '|.21 (20) (20)

Report of the Auditor-General on Kangundo Level 4 Hospital for the year ended j0 June, 2022 - County Government
of Machakos
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ln addition, the Hospital lacked the necessary equipment and machines outlined in the Health
Policy Guidelines as detailed below;

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kangundo Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Government
of Machakos
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Equipment and Machines
Level4

Hospital
Standard

Actuals
in the

Hospital
Variance Percentage

otto

Beds 150 201 (51) (34)

Resuscitaire (2 in labor & 1 in
theatre) 2 1 1 50

New born unit incubators 5 0 5 (100)
New born unit cots 5 15 (10) (200)
Functional ICU beds 6 0 0
High Dependency Unit (HDU)
Beds o 0 6 100

Renal Unit with at least 5
dialysis machines 0 5 100

Two Functional operational
theatres-Maternity & General 2 1 1 50

These deficiencies contravene the First Schedule of Health Acl, 2017 and imply that
accessing the highest attainable standard of health, which includes the right to health care
services, including reproductive health care as required by Article 43(1) of the Constitution
of Kenya, 2010 may not be achieved.

ln the circumstances, the Hospital will not be able to deliver on its mandate.

Conclusion

6
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Basis for Conclusion

1. Unregistered Pharmacy and Expired Pharmaceutical Supplies in Store

Review of the records maintained at the Hospital revealed that the facility had in store
expired pharmaceutical products of undetermined value. Further, the Hospitals'
pharmacy was not registered with the Pharmacy and Poisons Board.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness on internal controls over pharmaceutical supplies
could not be confirmed.

2. Lack of Risk Management Policy

During the year under review, the Hospitaldid not have a risk management policy in place.
This was contrary to Regulation 158(1) of the Public Finance Management (County
Governments) Regulations, 2015 which states that the Accounting Officer shall ensure
that (a)the county government entity develops risk management strategies, which include
fraud prevention mechanism; and (b) the county government entity develops a system of
risk management and internal control that builds robust business operations.

ln the circumstances, the internal controls and risk management of the Hospital may not
be effective.

3. Lack of lnternal Audit function and Committee

During the year under review, it was noted that the Hospital did not have an internal audit
function to perform risk assessment processes and evaluation of operational
effectiveness of the Hospital through reviews of the internal controls in the Hospital, thus
risks may not have been identified and mitigated. ln addition, there was no Audit
Committee in place.

ln the circumstances, the internal controls, risk management and governance of the
Hospital may not be effective.

4. Lack of Hospital Management Board

The statement of financial performance reflects Nil Board of Management expenses as
disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements. However, the Board of Management that
is supposed to direct the Hospital in achieving its strategic objectives was not constituted.

ln the circumstances, the Hospital may not achieve its strategic objectives

5. Failure to Maintain Fixed Assets Register

The statement of financial position reflects Nil balances in respect of property, plant and
equipment as disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements. However, it was noted that

Report of the Auditor-General on Kangtndo Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Government
of Machakos
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the Hospital does not maintain fixed asset register to control its assets. This was contrary to
Regulation 136(1) of the Public Finance Management (County Governments)
Regulations,2015 which states that the Accounting Officer shall be responsible for
maintaining a register of assets under his or her control or possession as prescribed by the
relevant laws. ln addition, there was no evidence to show that the Hospital has ever valued
its assets to ascertain the correct market values.

ln the circumstances, the existence of an effective mechanism to safeguard assets could
not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Hospital's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Hospital monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kangundo Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Governmenl
of Machakos
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ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Hospital's ability to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services unless the Management is aware of the intention to terminate
the Hospital or to cease operations.



Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSA|s will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

a

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Hospital's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Report of the Auditor-Ceneral on Kangundo Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Government
of Machakos
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a

a

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of appropriate basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Hospital's
ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hospital to cease to
sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Hospital to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA CBS

Nairobi

25 June,2O24

Report of the Auditor-General on Kangundo Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County Government
of Machakos
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Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machakos County Government)
,lnnaal Report and Financial Statementsfor The Yeor Ended 30th June 2022

l3.statement of Financiar performance for The year Ended J0 June 2022

Reven ue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from the County Govemment 6 6,000.000.00

In- kind contributions from the Countv Governrnent

Grants from donors and development partners 8

Transfers from other Government entities 9

Public contributions and donations t0

Revenue from exchange transacfions

Rendering of services- Medical Service Income II 29,051,890 00

Revenue from rent of facilities )
Finance /lnterest Income l3
Other income (spe c. 1f.v) l-t
Revenue from exchange transactions 29,0s 1,890.00

Total revenue 35,05 t,890.00

Expenses

Medical/Clinical costs t5 r 9,263,598.00

Ernployee costs 16 4,646,100 00

Board of Management Expenses l7
Depreciation and am ortization expense l8
Repairs and maintenance t9 2.156,840.00

Grants and subsidies 20

General expenses 2l 6.220.820.00

Bank Charges

Finance costs ))
Total expenses 32,287,358.00

Other gains/(losses)

I

2020/2t202U22

Kshs Kshs



Kangundo Level 4 Hospitat (Llachokos Cou n4,Govemmenl)
.lnnual Report and Financial Statenr entsfor The l'ear Ended 3Ah June 2022

I

Gain on disposal of non-Current asset 5 23
nreU izedal n on fai r val eugal fo I) e enstm S 24
edical services contmcts GainsilossesM

25
lmpairment loss

26
Gain on foreign exchan ge transactions

Total other gains/(losses)

\et Surplus for the 1.ear 2,764,,532.00
Attnbutable to

deficiv(S uurp attn butab) ot ln llon n CI 5t)
S u S a bttn taLl burp e o o t\Tl ers fo h on ro n t)a t)

The Hospital's financiar statements \\'ere appro'ed by the lv{anagement onsigned on its behalfby:

WZ
d

Hea of Finance
ICPAK No:21{16

lledical Su perintendent

tl



Kangundo Level 4 Hospitat (Machakos Coung, Goverumen
,Annual Report and Financiql Ststements for The l'ear Ended 3Ah June 2022

t)

Statement of Financial position as of 30ih June2022

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2i 1.449,332.00
Receivables from exchange transactions 28 29,05 1,890.00
Receivables from non-exchan ge transactlons 29
In ventories

-1u

Total Current Assets 36,501,222.00
Non-cu rrent assets

Property, plant, and equiprnent 3l
Intangble assets 32
Investment properry-

Total Non-cu rrent Assets

Total assets 16'501,222.00

Lia bilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 34 33.736,690
Refun dable deposits from customers/patients 15

Prolisions 36
Finance Iease obligation -)/
Current portion of deferred income 38
Current portion of borrovvin 39
Total Current Lia bilities 3J,736,690
\on-cu rrent liabilities
Provisions 36
Non-Current Finance lease obli gatr on 37
Non{urrent portion of deferred income 38
Non - Current portion of borrowings 39
Service concession liabili tv .10

Total Non-cu rrent liabilities
I'otal Liabilities 33,736,690.00

-)

Description Notes 202U22

IGhs Kshs

6.000,000.00



Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Ilachakos Cou nty Governmeill
.4nnual Repon and Financial Stutements The l'ear Ended 3F June 2for 022

(,-he nores set out on pages x to -cr.fitr,r ttn rnrcgrur part of the .lnnuar Financiar lame nt,s .)

The Hospital's financial satements \\.ere approved by. the rnanagernent onsigned on its behalfbl,: and

Head o F tnance
ICPAK No: 2l{t6

\Iedical Superintendent

Net assets

Revaluation resene

Accumulated surplus,,Deficit 2.764,s32
Capital Fund

Total Net Assets and Liabiliti es 36.s0I,222.00

J

Kshs

Desc
202U22 2020tzrNotes

Kshs



Kongundo Level 4 Hospital (Machakos
Annual Report and Financiol Stotemen

County Government)
tsfor The L'ear Ended 30/h June 2022

l4- Statement of Changes in \-et.{sset for The Year Ended 30 June 2022

o

l'hc notes set out ot1 pa€,e

The Hospita.l's financial st,

sigrred on its behalfby:

s I to l5 form an integral pan ol the Annual F

atements u'ere approved by the Management on

utQnc'm alentenl.t

d

Head of Finance
ICPAK No:2I.tl6

@*
\Iedica I Su periir tendent

As at Jul"v- 1,2020

Revaluation gain

Capital/Development grants

Surplus (deJC cit) for the year

.{s at June 30,2021

At July l,2021

Revaluation gain

SurpluY( deficit) for the vear 2,764,532 2,764,532
Capital/Development grants

.{t June 30, 2022 2.761,532 2,764,532

rf

Revaluation
reserve

Accumulated
su VDeficit

Capital
Fund Total



Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (;|Iachokos Coun4'Gowrnment).lnnual Report and Financiol Statementsfor The l-ear Ended 3F June 2022

l5.Statement of cash Frows for The \'-ear Ended 30 June 2022
I I

I

Cash flows fro m operating actir.ities
Receipts

T from h e oC un oG L.rn lll IIet,' 6,000,000.00
anGr IitS lno ond orS na d o IN n 1 rtna rSp p

sfers frfaT l) o lIl o h r oG ntnt lte s

Public contributions and donations

ltR !'ll nde n fo senl ediMq alc Ser\ eI c I') nto 29.051,890 00
Revenue from rent of facilities
Finance / interest income

Other receipts(.rpec,rljt
Total Receipts

Js,051.890.00

Payments

Medical/Clinical costs
19,263,598.00

Employee costs
4,646-100.00

Board of Management Expenses
Repairs and maintenance I z, r so,a+o.oo
Grants and subsidies

Ceneral expenses
6,220.820 00Finance costs

Refunds paid out
Total Payments

32,287,358.00
fro ti\ et cas flh olt' s om ra n Cil t \pe eri so ll 2,761,532.00

fro riaC] sh floll s m n l' nesti acti \'l CSo

rPu hC se fo o anpr up rt\' IN np & t)eq p an b S,l 5 S

ocPr eeds tnfro th aS fo ro anp anp dert) lt IIeq p
Acquisition of investments

estinet cas flh Soli seu d n ln il t\ct tr csa

fr ctiaC hs ofl ll S mo fi n na c n :l t' tl eso

Proceeds from borrow.in cs

Repayment of borrowings

Capital grants received

\ et ac hs flolr' s use n fid n a n c n a cti ri es(,

6

Description
202tn2 2020t2t

Note Kshs Kshs

ransfers

der el

t entr

ces-

gl

upl



Kangundo Level 4 Hospilat (Mochakos Coun
Annaol Report and Financial Statementsfor

4'Governmenl)
The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

Ne tnt c ecd s('rea n sca ah dn Crease/( as h u a en tseq
Cash and cash equivalents at I July 2021 27 r ,3 r 5,200.00
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2022 27 1,.149,332.00

4PSAS 2 allows an entil!* to pre.Tent the cash.flow sratement using the direct or indirecr methodbut encourages the direct method. p.\7.\-B alio recommends the ise of dire,ct method of cashflowpreparalion).

The notes set out on pages
Hospital's financial statem
signed on its behalfb],:

I to 15 form an integral part of
ents were approved by the man

the Annual Fin
agement on

cl The
and

Hea f Finance
ICPAK No: 21416

\Iedical Su perintendent

1
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-_Kangundo 
Level 4 Hospital- (Machakts Coun4. (itn,srnmsn\ ..lttnual Report and FinoncialStatementsfor The year Ended 3Ut,tune 2022

17. Notes To the Financial Statements

!. General Information

Kangundo Level 4 Hospital is established by,and derives its authoriry- and accountability from the
Kenya Ga,zette notice of Januarl lTrr'. I9g9. The entitl. is u,holry owned by the County
Government of Machakos ald is domrciled in Ken-va. The entiry's principal activity is to provi de
quality healthcare to the peopre of Kangundo Sub count' and its environs by preventing,
controlling and eradicating disease. Furlher. the facilrtl is tasked to rehabilitate and promote
healthy living by ensuring quick accessibilitl of'efficient. equitable. affordable and sustainable
health sen ices.

2. Statement Of Compliance .{nd Basis Of preparation

The financial statements ha'e been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement
at re-valued atnounts of certain items of propertr'. plant. aad equipment, marketable securities a-nd
financial instruments at fair value. impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and
actuarially determined liabilitres at their present 

'alue. 
The preparation of financial staternents in

conformit-v with International Public Sector .{ccounting Standards (lpsAS) alows the use of
estimates and assumptions. It also requires lnanagement to exercise judgement in the process of
appllng the l4ac'hako's Counr.t (iotcrnnrcnt accovntrng policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgrnent or complexiry. or uhere assurnprions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements. are disclosed in \ore xx The financia.r statements have been prepared and
presented in Ken;-a Shillings. which is the functionar and reporting currency of the entitl'.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance u,ith the pFM Act, and and International
Public Sector Accountin-e Standards trpSAS) The accounring poricies adopted have been
consistentlv applied to all the vears presented.

3. Adoption ofNew and Revised Standards

IPSASB deferred the application date of standards frorn I'r January'2022 owing to Covid 19. This was
done to provide entities with time to effecnvell appll the standards. The deferral was set for I .,January
2023.

IO



^Kangundo 
Level 4 Hospitar (Machakos Counq-, Government) Annuar Report and Financiar

Stotementsfttr The Year Ended 3Ut, .Iune 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (C'ontinuetl)

r' New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not vet effecfive in the year ended
30 June 2022.

IPSAS 4I:
Financial

Instnrments

Applicable: l'r January 2023:

The objective of IpSAS 4l is to estabrish principles for the financiar reporting of
financial assets and liabilities that w.ill present relevant and useful information to
users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and
uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flou.s.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more usefur information than
IPSAS 29. bv:

' Applying a singre classrfication and measurement moder for financiar assets

that considers the characteristics of the asser's cash flows and ilre objective
for w'hich the asset is held:

' Applying a singre lbrward-looking expected credit loss model that is
applicable to all financial instruments subject to impainnent testing: and

. Applving an impror.ed hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging
,urangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a srong link
between an Entit-'"'' s risk ,ranageurent strategies and the accounting treatment
for instruments held as part of the risk management sfiategy.

IPSAS 42:

Social Benefits The objective ofthis standard is to improve the rerevance. faithfur representativeness
and comparabiliry"of the information that a reporting Entity provides in its financiar
statements about sociar benefits. The information provided should herp users of the
financial statements and general_purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Entity:
(b) The key'features of the operation ofthose sociar benefit schemes: and

Applicable: l't Januan 2023

II



Kangundo Lever 4 Hupitar (Machakos Coun4. Go,ernment) Annuar Report and FinancialStatementsfor The I'ear Ended 3tlh June 2022"

(c) The irnpact ofsuch social benefirs pror.ided on the Entiry-.s finatrcial performance
financial position and cash flows.

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

IPS.AS 41.

Financial

Instruments

a) Amendrnents ro lps'{s 5. to update the guidance rerated to the cornponents
of borror'r'ing costs * hich * ere inadrenently omitted when IpSAS 4 r was
issued.

b) Amendments to IpSAS 30. regarding illusrative examples on hedging and
credit risk which rvere inad'ertently omitted when IpsAS 4 r was issued.

c) Amendments to IpSAS 30. to update the guidance for accounting for
financial guarantee contracts w.hich w.ere inadvertently omitted when

lnstruments on initiar adoption of accruar basrs IpSAS which were inadvertentry
ornitted when IpSAS 4 I u.as issued.

onupdate the guidance classifing financial

Applicable: Ist Januan. 202J:

IPSAS 4I uas issued

Amendmenrs to IpSAS 33. ro

Other

improvements to

IPSAS

lItsAS 22 Discrosure rr ["inanc'iar rnrirnnrittn about the Gene rar Goyernmenr
Sec.t or.

Amendments to refer to the larest Sy.stern of Narronal .Accounts (SNA 200g).e ,IP57S-19: Enpl<\,ee Rene.fir.s

Now'deletes the term cornposite sociar securiry'benefits as it is no ronger defined in
IPSAS

o IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement
Standard no ronger included in rhe 202 I Ips.{s handbook as it is now superseded bv
IPSAS 4l which is applicable from I,rJanuary. 2023.

Applicable I't Januar:. 202j

IPSAS 43 .4pplicabl,e I't Junuun. 2025

for

b.1
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Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machakos (\run4, Government) Annual Report and Financial
Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Uh June 2t)22

Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early - adopr an] new or arnended standards in the year June 30,2022

4. Summary Of Significant Accounting policies
a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other Government enfities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other govemment entities are measured at fair value and
recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash. goocls. sen'ic'es. antl propero*) if the transfer is free
fiom conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or ser\ice potential related to the asset will
flow to the entitv and can be measured reliablr .

Entiry.

The new standard requires entities to recognise. measure and present information on

right ofuse assers and lease liabilities.

Ieases have on the financial position. financial performance and cashflows of an

IPSAS 44: Non-

Current Assets

Held for Sale

and

Discontinued

Operations

Assets that meet the cnteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the
lower ofcarrying amount and fair'alue less costs to sell and the depreci ation ofsuch
assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented separately

in the statement offinancial position and the results ofdiscontinued operations to be
presented separately, in the statement of financial performance.

Applicable l't Janua4, 2025

The Standard requires.



..Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machakos Counq. Governasrrll .4nnual Regm ond FinancialStatements fttr The I'ear Ended 3Uh June 202)

Notes tu the Financial Statements (Continucd)

Revenue from erchange tran sactions
Rendering of services

The entity recognizes re'enue aom rendering of se^-ices bv reference to the stage ofcompletion when theoutcome of the transaction can be esdrnated reliabll. The stage of completion is measured by referenc€ tolabour hours incurred to date as a percenlaqe of total esdmated labour hours. where the contract outcomecannot be measured reliably' revenue is recognized onl) to the extent that the expenses incurred arerecoverable.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale ofgoods is recoEtized uhen the significant risks and rewards ofownership havebeen transferred to the buyer. usually. on deliven
of the goods and when the amount ofrer enue can be measured reliably. and it is probable that the economicbenefits or sen ice potential associated with the ransa
lnterest income 

r qJrvwra..,, l,r rrn rne ransacron u.ill flou to the endry.

Interest income is accrued using the effbctir e -r'ield nrethod. The effective yield discounts estimated futurecash receipts through the expected life of the financiar asser ro rhat asser,s net carry.dng amount. The merhodapplies this rerd to the principar outstanding ro derennine inreresr income for each period.Dividends

;#r:,::illar 
d'istributions must be recoguized u,en the sharerrorder's or the enriry's rishr ro receive

Rental income

Rental income arising froln operating leases on inrestrnent properties is accounted for on a straight-rinebasis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

il



Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machakos Coani' Government) Annual Report and Ftnancial
Statements for The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continuetl)

b) Budget information
The original budget for FY 2021/2022 was approved by, Board on.i0 Saprentber 2020. Subsequent revisions
or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance *-ith specific approvals from
the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon
receiving tre respective approvals in order to conclude the final bud-eet. AccordingJy. the entity recorded
additional appropriations ofar7 on the FY 202 1i2022 budget follouing the Board's approval. The enriry.s
budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in the financial
statements' The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a classification based on the nature
of expenses in the statement of financial performance. rvhereas the bud-eet is prepared on a cash basi s. The
arnounts in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified bv
presentation to be on the same basis as the appror.ed budget.

A comparison ofbudget and actual amounts. prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then
presented in the statement ofcomparison ofbudget and acrual arnounts. In addition to the Basis difference.
adjustments to alnounts in the financial staternenls are also made for differences in the formats and
classification schemes adopted for the presentation ofthe financial statements and the approved budget. A
statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial performance has been presented
under section XW of the* financial staternents.

I5



Kangundo Level 4 Hospitar.(1l!ar.o Counq' Government) Annual Report and FinanciarStatements for The year Ended 3tft,June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statenents (Continued)

c) Taxes

Sales tax/ Value Addcd Tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net ofthe amount of sales tax. except:

i when the sales tax incurred on a purchase ofassets or sen'ices is not recoverable from the taration
authorir-v-' in which case' the sales tax is recognizecl as pan of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part ofthe expense itern- as applicable.

i when receivables and payables are stated with the arnount of sales tax included. The net amount
ofsales tax recolerable from. or palable to- the taxanon authorit)- is included as part ofreceivables
or payables in the statement offinancial posrtion.

d) Investment propert"v

lnvestment properties are measured initially at cost. including transaction costs. The carrying amount
includes the replacement cost of components of an existin-q inr,estrnent propert-v at the time that cost is
incurred if the recognition criteria are rnet and excludes the costs of day-to-day maintenance of aninvestnent property.

lnveshnent properry acquired through a non-exchange tIansaction is rneasured at its fair value at the date ofacquisition' subsequent to initial recognition. in'estrnent properties are rneasured using the cost model andare depreciated ol'er a period of xrr years. ln'est,ent properties are derecognized either when they have
been disposed of or when the in'estrnent propeq is perrnanentll, *.rthdrawn from use and no futureeconomic benefit or sen"ice potenhal is expeoed fi'orn its disposal. The difference betw.een the net disposal
proceeds and the carryin*s amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period ofde-recognition. Transfers are made to or from inrestrnent prLrper\. onlr u hen there is a change in use.

e) Properfy, plant and equipment

'AIl property' plant and equipment are stated ar cost less accunulated depreciation and impairment losses.cost includes expenditure that is directl'attnbutable to the acquisihon ofthe items. when sigrificant partsofproperry' plant and equipment are required to be replaced at inten.als. the entity recognizes such parts
as individual assets with specific useful li'es and depreciates thern accordingly. Likewise. when a majorinspection is performed' its cost is recognized in the carn'ine amounr of the prant and equipment as areplacernent if the recognition criteria a,e salisfied. .Alr other repair and rnaintenance costs are recognizedin surplus or deficit as incurred wtere an asset is acquired in a non-erchange transaction for nir or nominarconsideration the asset is initially rneasured at its fair value.
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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Statements for The Year Ended 3Oh June 2022

f) Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at the commencement of the
lease at the fair value of the leased propern or. if louer. at the present value of the future minimum lease
pa}ments. The Entity also recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The liability
recognized is measured as the present value of the future minimum lease pa)rynents at initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, Iease pay'ments are apportioned betu,een finance charges and reduction of
the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate ofinterest on the remaining balance ofthe liabilitv. Finance
charges are recogrized as finance costs in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life ofthe asset. However, ifthere is no
reasonable certainty that the Entit)'- will obtain ownership of the asset b1.the end of the lease terrn, the asset
is depreciated over the shorter ofthe estirnated useful life of the asset and the lease term.
operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantialll,all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership
ofthe leased item to the Entity. operating lease payments are recogrrized as an operating expense in surplus
or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease tenn.

g) lntangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately'are initially recognized at cost. The cost ofintangible assets acquired
in a non-exchange transaction is their fair r,alue at the

date of the exchange' Following initial recognition. intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated irnpairment losses. Intemallv generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs. are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or
deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life ofthe intangible assets is assessed
as either finite or indefinite

Ir-
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Notes to the Financial Statements ((bntinue(l)

h) Research and development costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Der eloprnent costs on an individual project are recognized
as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

irhe technical feasibility of cornpleting the asser so that the asset u,ill be available for use or sale

i lts intention to complete and its abiliry.to use or sell the asset

i The asset will generate future econornic benef.its or sell.lce potentia.t

,- The availability of resources to complete the asset

- The ability to measure reliabll the erpenditure during der,elopment.

Following initial recognition of an asset. the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. ,fu'nortization of the asset begins w.hen development is complete and
the asset is available for use. It is amortized o'er the pedod of expected future benefit. During the period
of development, the asset is tested for irnpairment annuall' with anv impairment losses recognized
immediately in surplus or deficit.

i) Financialinstruments

Financial assets

lnitial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
classified as financial assets at fair'alue througi surplus or deficit. Ioans and receivables, held-to_maturirn-
investments

or avai lable-for-sale financial assets. as appropdate

financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

The Entir.v- determines the classification of its

Loans and receivables are non-derivati'e financial assets rvith fixed or determinable payments that arenot quoted in an active market Atler initial rneasurerncnt. such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the eflbcti'e interest rnethod- less impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account an1 discount or prerniurn on acquisition and fees or costs that are anintegral part of the effective interest rate. Losses arising frorn impainnent are recognized in the surplus
or deficit.

r8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continuetl)

Held-tematuriry._

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified
as held to maturity when the Entitl. has the positir.e

intention and abilitv to hold it to maturiq'. After initial measurement. held-to-maturity investrnents are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method- less impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premiuln on acguisition and Ges or costs that are an
integral part ofthe effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus
or deficit

lmpairment of financial assets

The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or an
entit-v of financial assets is impaired. .A, financial asset or an entin. of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if and onll if, there is objecrive er"idence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the entity of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment rna.v include the following indicators:

'r T"he debtors or an entiryt'of debtors are expenencing significant financial difficulty

i Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

'r The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization

i observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g. changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

Financial lisbilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope oflPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings. as appropriate. The Entitv determines the classification of its
financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and- in the case ofloans and borrowings, plus
directll, atu'i butable transaction costs.

l9



I

. Kangundo Lever 4 Hospitar (Machakos Counq. Government) Annuar Report and Fhaaciar
Statements for The l'ear Ended 3Uh June 20) 2

,\otes tu the Financial Statements (Continued)

Loans and borrowing

After initid recognition. interest-bearing loans and borros ings are subsequentlv measued at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Cains and Iosses are recognized in surplus or deficit when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as througfi the effecti'e interest rnethod amoftlzation process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taliing into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part ofthe effectir.e interest rare

i) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received through
non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost). the cost of the inventory is its fair value at
the date of acquisition.

costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

i Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted a\.erase cost rnethd

iFinished goods and work in progress: cost of direct rnateriars a'd labour. and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the nonnal operatinu capaciq. but excluding borrowing costs

After initial recognitioq" inventoll is r.easured at tle lower cost and net realizable value.
However' to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deploved at no charge or for a nominal
charge' that class of inventory is measured at the lo\\er cost and the current repracement cost.Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinarl course ofoperations. less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. exchange, or distribution. Inventories
are recognized as an expen se when deprol',ed for utirization or consumption in the ordinary course of
operations of the Endry,.

j) Provisions

Pror'isions are recognized when the E

past event. it is probable that an outfl

will be required to settle the obligation

Where the Entiqv expects some or all

contract. the reimbursement is recogJt

cenain.

ntit) has a present obligation (le_eal or constructive) as a result ofa
ow of resources ernbodying economic benefits or sewice potential
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount ofthe obligation.
ofa provision to be reirnbursed. for exampre, under an lnsur:rnce
ized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually

20
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continuetl)

The expense relating to an1' provision is presented in the staternent of financial performance net ofanv
reimbursement.

Contingent Iiabilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liabilin. but discloses details ofany contingencies in the notes
to the financial statements' unless the possibiliq of an ourfloq' of resources embodying economic benefits
or service potential is remote.

Confingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset. but discloses details ofa possible asset whose existence
is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or rnore uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Entitv- in the notes to the financial staternents. contingent .rssets are assessed
continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has
become vimlallt celtain that an infloE of economic benefirs or sen,ice potential w-ill arise and the asset.s
value can be measured reliably'. the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements
ofthe period in which the change occurs.

k) Nature and purpose of reserr.es

The Entity creates and tnaintains reserves in tenns ofspecific requirements. (tintity ro stare the
resen'es nninruined ond appropn(tte pol rt,ias otloptetl.)

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimates
The Entity recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting policv retrospectively. The effects ofchanges
in accounting policy are applied prospectirelr,ifretrospective applicadon is impractical.
m) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its emplol.'ees and directors. Defined contribution plans are
post-emplo)'T nent benefit plans under u'hich an entit) pa),s fixed contributions into a separate entity 1afund)' and will have no legal or constructive obtigation to pa\,funher contributions if the fund does not
hold sufticient assets to pay au emprol,'ee benefits rerating to emprovee service in the
current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the pal,rnent ofretirement benefits are
charged against income in the year in u'hich thel become payable. Defined benefit plans are post-
employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially
valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered th rough
Iump-sum payrnents or increased future contributions on a proportional basis to all participating
ernployers The contributions and Iurnp sum paymenrs reduce the post-ernployrnent benefit obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continuetl)

n) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initialll' accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date of
the rransaction Trade creditors or debtors denorninated in foreign currency are reported at the statement
of financial position reporting date b1 appl'ing.the exchange rare on that date. Exchange differences
arising from the settlement of creditors. or from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the period- are recogrrized as income or expens€s in the period
in which they arise.

o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualiflirrq assets as par-t of propert-v, prant and equip,ment.Such
borrowing costs are capielized over the period durin-u which the asset is being acquired or constructed
and borrowings have been incurred. capitalization ceases r'hen construction of the asset is cornplete.
Further borrowing costs are charged to the sraternerrt ot't'inanciar performance.

P) Related parties

The Entiry regards a related part-v as a person or an enfitr u ith the abiriq' to exert contror individualy orjointly' or to exercise significant influence or er the Entin'. or r.ice 
'ersa. 

Members of key management
are regarded as related parties and cornprise the directors. the cEo principal and senior managers.

q) Service concession arrangemenh

The Entity analyses all aspects of serr'ice concession arran-qelnents that it enters into in determining the
appropriate accounting treatment artd disclosure requirernents. In panicular. rvhere a private party
contributes an asset to the arrangement. the Entin'reco!.nizes that asset rvhen. and onlv when, it controls
or regulates the services' The operator rnusl pro'ide together *'ith the asset. to whom it must provide them.
and at what price' In the case of assets other tha, 'u hole-otlife ' assets. it controls. through ormership.
beneficial entitlement or othenvise - anl signiticant resrdual interest in the asset at the end of thearrangement' An)' assets so recognized a'e tneasured at their fair,',alue. To the extent that an asset has
been recognized' the Entiqv also recognizes a corresponding liabiliry. adjusted by a cash consideration
paid or received.

))
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank. short-term deposits on call and highly
liquid investrnents with an original maturitl' of three months or less, which are readily convertible to
known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges in value. Bank account balances
include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenl'a and at various commercial banks at the end of the
financial year. For the purposes ofthese financial statements. cash and cash equivalents also include short
term cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and,/or institutions which were not
surrendered or accounted for at the end ofthe financial vear.

s) Comparative figures

where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or reconfigured
to conform to the required changes in presentation

t) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end u,ith a significant impact on the financial
statements for the year ended June 30. 2022.

5. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainn
The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformir,v- *lrr, tpsas requires management to
tnakejudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported arnounts ofrevenues. expenses, assets
and liabilities' and the disclosure of contingent liabilines. at the end of the reporting period. However.
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustrnent to the carrving amount of the asset or liabiliry- affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estirnation uncertainty at the reporting
date. that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carry.ing amounts of assets and
Iiabilities within the next financial year. are described belou.. The Entity based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. However.
existing circumstances and assumptions about future de'elopments mal,change due to market changes or
circurnstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.( IPSAS I.140)
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Notes to the Financial Statements ((intinued)

tjseful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the follo*ing ind.icators to inform
potential future use and value liorn disposal

The condition of the asset based on the assessrnent ofexperts employed by the Entity.
The nature of the asset- its susceptrbiriq and adaptability- to changes in technology and
processes.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and managernent determined an estimate based on the information available.
Additional disclosure of these estimates of pror.isions is incruded in \ote xxx.

Prorrisions are measured at the managemenl's best estirnate of rhe expendilure required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date and are discounted ro present 

'alue 
u.here the effect is material.

(lnclude provisions appricobre /br )'our orgoni.totion e.g pr()t.i.\ion .rbr bad dehts, prottsions or.obsorere
stocks and hov. nnnogeme e.rlimarcs lhase prot.i.;ion.r1

_1
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Statements for The Year Ended 3dh June 2022

6. Transfers From The County Government

fjnconditional grants

Operational grant

Level 5 grants

Other grants

Conditional grants

User Ge forgone

Transforming proJealh rh sen l Sce rfo NIL ersal ar
DANIDA
Wards Development grant

Paediatric block grant

Administration block grant

Laboratory grant

Total government granfs and subsidies

25

Descri 202U22 2020/2t

KShs KShs

(THLTCP)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continuetl)

6 Transfers from The Counfy- Gorernment

.{mount
defered
under

deferred
income
KShs

K^Shs
Machakos
County'
Covemment 6.000,0000

6.000.0000

Tota I 6.000.000
6.000.000

I I II
KSt

Salaries and wages

7 ln Kind Contributions from The (.ou ntl Government

Pharmaceutical and Non-pharmaceuti cal Supplies
i!{edical supplies-Drawin gs Rights aKE\lS.\)
Lttility bills

Total grants in kind
(l'hese include patments ma(le (lirecll| bt te { ortnt) (ioternments.1fttr.stuff..salaries 

ancl nte
ttl e.r1te n.se ./b r c.( )ntp / e te ne ss o./..fi nancial .sta teme

l'hese should he recortled h<tth as inc<une ut
dical dntgs
n l.\ |8. Grants From Donors and Developnrent Partners

Paed ratric ward grant- JICA

Total grants from develo pment parfners

I l'ntride brie.f explanation lbr tht.s rere trc )

Cancer Centre grant- DANIDA
tr'orld Bank grants

Research grants

Other grants (speci/.t 1

l6

Amount
recognised in
capital fund.

Description
202U22

Total grant
income

during the
year

Total
2020/21

Name of the
Entity
sending the
grant

Amount
recognized to
Statement of

financial
performance

KShs
I(Shs KShs

202u22 2020/21

KShs

2020t2t

KShsI(Shs
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Notes to the Financial Statements ((bntinuett)

8 (a) Grants from donors and de'eropment partners (Classification)

9. Transfe rs From Other Governmenf Entities

10. Public Contributions and Donations

(Provide brief explanation.ftir this ret enue)

Donor e.g.. DANIDA
JICA

World Bank

Total

Tran sfer fiorn Natl Gonal o ernlllen \tin Hfo ale rhstr--v

Transfer from rxx National Hospital
Transfer from rrx Institute

Total Transfers

Public donations

Donations from local leadershi p

Donations from religrous lnstrfutlons
Don oilatt fi.S ooln ther n atem ontl al trSA son and diIN \.torganl d alu s

Other donarions( spectfi1

Donations in kind-amonised

Total donations and sponsorships

)i

Narne of the Entity sending
the grant

Amoult
rrcognized to
Statcment of

financial
performance

Amount
deferred

under
deferred
income

KShs KShs

Descri
2020t2t

( )

I(Shs

2021t22

I(Shs

2020121
Descri 202y22

I(Shs KShs
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Notes to the Financial Statentents (Continuetl)

l0 (a)Reconciliafions of amortised grants

I l. Rendering of Services-Medical Service Income

(tnher medical sen ices -fee relate.s to otltc r cltLtrges nlt li.stcd ohot e t

e unspent at beginning of I earBalanc

Current year receipts

ortised and transferred to rcvenueAm

ons to be met - remain liabilities('onditi

Pharmaceuticals

Non-Pharmaceuticals

of sen ices

Orth c and Trauna Technol

Ear Nose and Throat service

Farewell home sen,i ces

Other medical serv'lces rncotne

from the renderinTotal reven ue

Radiolo

Th eatre

Accident and Service
.Anesthesia Service

Nutrition sen ice

Cancer centre serrice
Dental sen.ices

R ve heal th

Paediatrics sen ices

29.0s 1.890 00

29,051,890.00

28

2021/22 202U2t

Description
2021t22 2AOt2t

KShs I(Shs

KShs KShs

La

------------]--
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,\otes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

12. Revenue From Rent of Facilities

(Provide b ri ef explanat ion.fctr th i.s rcrenue )

13. Finance /Interest Income

(Pntvide hrief expIanation./br this reren e)
11. Other Income

Residential propert).

Cornmercial propertv

Total Revenue frorn rent offacilities

Cash invesnnents and fired deposits

Interest income Aom short- term,/ current deposlts

Interest income from Treasury' Bills
Interest income from Treasury Bonds

lnterest frorn outstanding debtors

Total finance income

Insurance recoveries

Income from sale of tender

Senices concession income

goodsS fo t) catlon tacon rls. rS tcepu

Total other income

29

2t2tr22

KShs

2020t2t

KShs

242y22 2020121

I(Shs K-Shs

2021/22 2020t2t
Descripfion

KShs KShs

( w'ater.

NR AII income shouki be clas-sified a-s -lttr as po.ssihle in the relevtnt cl<tsses and <tther tw)me shanld beused to rccognise income not elseu.here clas.sjfietl).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continuetl)

lS. NtedicaU Clinical Costs

:::::;,::;:,!;;r:r,tlyyat 
related c.rt,s refbr' t. ail ,rhcr crtsrs inr.tyctt in manaSrement rf rhe porients <ti.crt1.

Employee Costs16.

Dental costV materials

Laboratory chemicals and reagents 1.092.992.00
Public health activities

Food and Ration 9.0-16. 140.00
L'nifonn. clothin g. and linen 2 t6.500.00
Dressing and Non-Phannaceudcal s 4.537.480 00
Pharmaceutical supplies r.801.145.00
Health information stari oner\T

Reproductive health material s

Sanitary and cleansing lvtaterial s 1.6s0.000.00
Purchase of Medical gases 3 I 1.592.00
X-Ray/Radiologl. supplies 6t1.749.00
Other medical related clinical costs (spec'1fi)

Total medical/ clinical costs
r 9.263.598.00

4.646. 100.00
Salaries. wages. and allos'ances
Contributions to pension schernes

Sen"ice gratui t)

tS ffa edim cal anses Id nsuranexpen ce co\ er

.\al ac I entd nIpersonGroup aItsurance d \\.I B

lspe ci.fi,)Other empl o)/ee costs

Performance and other bonuses

Social contributron

Em o) ee costs {.6{6,t 00.00

('*tcial crtntibulion reldle's b expen,te\ inatrrcd h)'the enrplt4'er kttt1nl.,; .social trelfare of timpktyee.s)

i0

20.21n2

KShs

2020t2t

KShs

2020t21

I(Shs

202U22

KShs
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

17. Board of Management Expenses

18. Depreciation And Amorfization Expense

19. Repairs and Maintenance

Chairman's Honoraria

Sitting allowance

\lileage

Insurance expenses

lnduction ard training

Travel and accommodation allowance
Airtime ajlowances

Total

Properry-. plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investment propert-v carried at cost

Total depreciation and amortizafion

Property- Buildings 412.760.00
Medical equipment 979,530.00
Office equipment

Furn iture and firdngs 42.600.00
Computers and accessories 129.500.00
N{otor vehicle expenses 592.450.00
Maintenance of civil works

Tofal repairs and maintenance 2.1s6,8-t0.00

-iI

2021n2 2020t21
KShs KShs

Dcscriptinn
202U22

I(Shs

2020t21

I(Shs

2020/212021/22

I(Shs KShs
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Notes tu the Financial Statements (Continuetl)

20. Grants And Subsidies

21. General Expenses

Cornrnuni6,-- develo pment and social work
Education initiatives and prog.rams

Free/ subsidised medical camp

Disabilit-v prograrns

Free cancer screening

Other grants and subsidies( specrfi)
Total grants and subsidies

Advertising and publicity expenses

Catering expenses

Waste mana-qernent expenses

Insecticides and rodentici des

.Audit fees

Bank charges

Conferences and delegatlons

Consultancy fees

Contracted services

Electricit_v expenses

I nsurance

Research and development expenses

Travel and accommodation allow.ance 26.000 00
Legal expenses

[-icenses and permits

General Offrce Supplies 178.900.00
Courier and postal serv.i ces

Printing and station en 1.3 I0.500 00
Hire charges

Rent expenses

Water and sewerage costs 637.300 00
Skills development le\,ies

-)

Descripftm 202U22 2020n1
KShs KShs

Descripilion 2021/22 2020t21
I(Shs KShs



Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machakos (1runq' Government) .,lnnual Report and Financial
Statementsfrtr The Year Ended 3dt, .Iune 2022

Telephone and mobile phone sen ices 535.120.00

Internet expenses

Staff traini ng and development

Subscriptions to professional bodies

nes and
Subscriptions to newspapers periodical

notrces

Li brary book s/l\.4aterial s

Parking charges

Other Costs( Fuel and Lubricants) 3.233.000.00

Total General Exlxnscs 6.220,820.U)

22. Finance Costs

21. l-jnrealized Gain On Fair Value lnl.estments

(Rorrowing c'ost-s thctt relate_ lo intercst e.\pense on ac.t\isitiotr t.tl.rtott- cttrent ossets and tlo not qtutifiJbr(-apitalisaion as per IPSAS 5; on borrotring cosls shoirlcl he rnc)ltdetl ttnder this ioti:.1

23. Gain/Loss On Disposal Of Non-Current .A,ssers

Borrowings (amortized cost) *

Finance leases (amortized cost)

lnterest on Bank overdraft s/Guarantees

Interest on loans from commercial banlis

Total finance cmts

Propertv. plant. and equipment

Intangible assets

Othsr asscts not capitalised (spec.tfi.)

Total gain on sale of assets

Investrnents at fair value

Total gain

-) -)

Descri 202u22 2020t21
KShs KShs

202u22 2020t2t
KShs KShs

Descriplien
2420nl202U22

KShs KShs

D€scripd,o0 2021/22 2020t2t
KShs KShs
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Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machokos (itun4' Government) .4nnual Relmrt and Finoncial

Statements for The l'ear Endetl jFh .Iune 202)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

25. Medical Services Contracts Gains /Losses

26. Impairment Loss

27. Cash And Cash Equivalents

Qhe amtntnt should agrce with the closing ancl opening holance.s a.s incltuletl rtt the statement oJ cashflou,sl

Comprehensive care contracts with NHIF 10.-162.455 00
Non- Comprehensit'e contracts care uith \HlF
l-inda Mama Program r8.589.435 00
Waivers and Exemptions

Total Gain/Loss 29.051.890.00

opert-v. plant. and equiprnentPr

Intangible assets

Total impairment loss

Current accounts
1.J19.332.00

On - call deposits

Fixed deposits accounts

Cash in hand

Others(specfi')- Mobile money

Total cash and cash equivalents I,J{9,332.00

ll

Pr.-EllL 2021/22

KShs

202U21

KShs

Description 202u22 2020t21

KShs KShs

Description
2021/22 2020t21
hshs KShs



Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machakos Couno Government) Annudl Relnrt and Financial
Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

De tailed Anal is of Cash and Cash E uivalents

28. Receivables From Exchange Transactions

27 A

a) Current account

Kenya Commercial bank t 147479t43 1.449.332.00
Equity" Bank. etc

SuF total

b) On - call deposits

Kenya Comrnercial bank

Equit"" Bank - etc

Sut> total I,J49,J32.00
c) Fixed deposits account

Bank Name

Su L total

d) Others(specifl')

cash in hand

Mobile money- Ivlpesa Airtel mon e)

SuL total

Grand total I,{.19,332.00

Medical sen'ices receivables-NHl F
refunds 29.0s 1.890.00

Rent receivables

Other exchange debtors

Less: impairment allow.ance

Total receivables 29,051.'890.00

3_s

Descriptien

Account number
2Uu22

I(^Shs

202frt2t
Financial imtitution

KShs

Description 2021t22

KShs KShs



, Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machakos Couny' Government) Annual Report and Financial
Statementsfor The Year Entled 3fh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

29. Receivables FromNon-ExchangeTransactions

( [ hr<li s b u ned donor.fitnd s refe r to.fi t
rec'ipient as al the reponing Llate)

ndt e-rpe<tetl vltcra cttttdi trort.y.fbr di.tltttr.\ement.\ hare been met by the

30. Inventories

Transfers fronr the Countv Governrnenl 6.000.000.00
Undisbursed donor funds

Other debtors Qton-crchange tansactton.s\

Less : impairment al low.ance

Total 6.000.000.00

Pharmaceuti cal supplies

Maintenance supplies

Food supplies

Linen and clothing supplies

Cleaning materials supplies

General supplies

Less: provision for lmpairrnent of stocks
Total

36

202U22I)escri

I(Shs

2020t2t

I(Shs

202U22 2020t21
KShs KShs
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At 30'r' June 202 I

.\1 10rlr .lq1lrc 2022

i\t 30 .Iune 2021

At July 2021

[)epreciation

I)isposals

Impailmenl
'l'ranstcrlail justnrenl

At J0tr'Junc 2022

Nct hook valurs

38

\

Descripfion
Lan

d

Buildin
gs and
Civil

works

Motor
vehicles

Furniture, filtings, nnd office
equipmcnt

tcT
Equipnrent

Plant and
medical

equipment

Crpital
Work in
pr0gres9

Tot
al



Kangundo l-evel 4 Hospital (,Vachukos Coun4, Government) Annual Reytrt and Financial
Statements fot The Year Ended 3lft June 2022

)yotes to the Financial Statements (C'ontinued)

32. Intangible Assets-Softw.are

33. InvesfmentPropertv

Cost

At beginning of the 1'ear
Additions

.A.dditions-lnternal development

Disposal

.{t end of the .r-ear

Amortization and impairment
At beginning of the year

Amortization for the period

Impairment loss

At end of the _v-ear

NBv

.{t beginning of the year

Additions

Fair value gain

Depreci (
)prope rt)'atr Il'on here .cltr .t n o ( (r.t

At end of the year

Trade payables 33.736.690.00
Employee dues

leThird- en tS nreu nt dparr!, r()pa)'m ( duccle ()N,Spq' )
Audit fee

Doctors'fee

Totsl trade and other pay ables 33,7J6,690.00

39

3.1. Trade And Other pavables

zuv22
KShs

2U0t2t
KShs

2U2tn2Dcscription

KShs

2020n1

KShs

2021ry?

KShs

2o2g!?ll

KShs
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Kangundo l-evel 4 Hospital (Muchakos Countl' Government) .Annual Report and Financial
Statements for The I'ear Ended 3Uh June 202)

Notes to the Financial Starements ((.itnttnuetl)

35. Refundable Deposits from C ustomers/patients

Medical fees paid in advance

Credi t faci I i ry- deposit

Rent deposits

Others (specli )

Total deposits

36. Provisions

37. Finance Lease Obligation

Balance at the of the l ear
Additional Provisions
Provision utilised

IChange due to discount & time value for mo
Total provisions

Current Prorisions
Non-Current Pror.isions

Total Provisions

hshs Kshs
Current lrase obligarion
Long term lease obligation

Total

,10

2020t21

KShs I(Shs

Description Leave Bonus
rston

KShs I(Shs

Other
provsrcn Total

KShs I(Shs

Descriptiou 202U22 2AOt2t
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Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (,Vachakos Counrl' (iovernment) .4nnual Re1xtrt and Rnancial
Statements for The l'ear Ended 3(/h June 202)

Notes to the Financial Stctements (Continuetl)

38. Deferred Income

38 (a) The deferred income molement is as follorr s:

39. Borrowings

Current Portion

Non-Current Portion

Total

Balance b/f
Addirions during the \rear

Trarsfers to Capital fund
Tralsf'ers to statement o1'
financial onnallce
Other transfers (.\pec ,.1.r^l

Balance C/F

beginning of the periodBalance at
External borrowings during the vear
Domestic borrow ings during the ).ear
Repayments of external borrowin gs during the -v-ear
R ts fo dom Cstlepa \4nen \\,1borro dunn thngs E vear
Balance at end of the priod

4l

202U22 2020t2tDescripion

KShs KShs

Description Infernational
funders/ donors

National
govcrnment

Public
confribu

tions
and

donation
s

Tot
al

Description 202u22 2020t2t
I(Shs KShs
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Kangundo Level 4 Hospitat (Machakos Counq' Government) Annual Report ond Financial
Statementsfor The l'ear Ended 3tlh .lune 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements ((\ntinuetl)
39. (a) Breakdown of Long- _{nd Short-Term Borrowings

{0. Service Concession Arrangements

tt. Cash Generated from Operations

(Ihe total of thii
in opemtions)

slatetnent sltottlcl ttc to tltc L.(1 slt .fkx .tec'lion on net cash -flou s .from

Current Obii tlon

Non-Current Oblr lon

Total

Fair value of senice concesslon assets reco under PPE
Accurnulated reciation to date
Net amoun tn

ervlS ce con SICS on liab il at be n n o f theIN, uln vear
Servr ec SSIconce l evenon u reco dqn

ceSerri conc essr on a itb a dell fo rhB ear

usted for:.{

2.?6{,532.00

2,i61,532.W

1 764.s32.00

Cai ns and losses on di
Contribution to provtslons

onC butrr tr on Ito ln nnal alent I c) anp

dj\1 or CA tal a us ntmeki.g tsI)I
Increase in invent on,

Increase in deferred income
Increase in payables
nI INclease en tS rec I ed nlpa\''l1r da an e

tirating\ et flowcash mfro o Ca !ttr es

atlon
\on-cash received
lmpairment

of assets

Increase in receivablei

-11

Description
2U2u22 2020t21

202u22

202U22 2020t21

KShs KShs

KShs KShs

2020t21
I(Shsbefore taxfor the hShs



Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machakos County Government) Annual Report and Financial
Statementsfor The Year Ended 30Nh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

42. Financial Risk Management

The entity's actirtties ex:pose it to a varieN offinancial risks including credit and liquidity risks and

effects of changes in foreign currenc). The compa-nt.'s overall risk rnanagement programme focuses

on the unpredictability of changes in the business enr.ironrnent and seeks to rninimise the potential

adverse effect of such risks on its perfonnance by' setting acceptable levels of risk. The company

does not hedge any'risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to customers

rvith an established credit history.

The enury's financial risk management objectrves and policies are derailed belou..

(i) Credit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk which is the risk that a counterparry will be unable to pay

amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents. and deposits with banks.

as well as trade and other receivables and al ailable-for-sale financial investments. Management

assesses the credit qualit-v ofeach customer. taking into account its financial position, past experience
and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external assessment in accordance
with limits set by the directors. The arnounts presented in the statement of financial position are net
of allowances for doubtful receilables. estinrated by' the cornpanv's management based on prior
experience and their assessment of the current economic envirorunent. The carrying amount of
financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the entitv's maximum exposure to
credit risk without taking account of the value of anl,collateral obtained is made up as follows:

J3



Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (-llochokos Countt' Government) .4nnual Report and Flnancial
Statements for The L'ear Endett 3ft, .tune 20J2

Notes to the Ftnancial ,gtatements (Continued)

t

{

(NR. 'l'he totals column :;houlcl
.statement of.fi naruia I 7n.s it ion;)

tie to the iru.lit iclual el,cmenls ol c'rcclit risk di,.sclosetl in thc entit.t,'s

The customers under the fully perfonning categorrv are paying their debts as they continue trading.
The credit risk associated with these receiYables is rninimal and the allowance for uncollectible
amounts that the compan)'has recognised in the financial statenrents is considered adequate to
cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The entin has significant concentration ofcredit risk
on a.rnormts due from xrrix

The board of management sets the compan\.'s credit poricies and objectives and rays dou.n
pifameters within which the'arious as;xcts of credrt risk rnanager,ent are operated.

(ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidin risk rna,agernent rests ,.ith the hospital,s board of
management who have built an appropnate Iiquidiry risk manaqernent framework for the
m:magemenr of the entin's shorl mediurn ard long-telrn funding and liquidity management
requirements' The entit-l manages liquidiq risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and
actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows pal.able b1' the cornpanr under non-derivative financia.l
liabiliries by their remaining contractual rnaturitres at rhe repornng date. The,unounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash florrs. Balances due rvithin l2 months equal their
carr,ving balarces, as the impact of discounting is rrot significant.

At 30 June 2020

Receivables from exchange transacrions
Receivables from -non-exchanee
transactlons

Banl balances
-fotal

At 30 June 2022

Receivables from exchange transactions
les from -non-exchange

trarsacfions
Receivab

Bank balances r.449.332 00

Total l.{{9,332.00

ll

Dcscription
Total

amount
Fully

performing

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

I
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(iii) Market risk

The hospital has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by
the entity on an ongoing basis. evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal
accounting and operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising fiom changes in market prices.
such as interest rate, equitv prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the entiry,s income
or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return. overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management
Committee.

.{t 30 June 2021
Trade payables

Current portion of borrowings

Provisions

Deferred income

Employee benefi t obligation

Total

At 30 June 2022

Trade payables

Current portion of borrow ings I

I

Pror,isions

Deferred income

Ernployce benefi t obligation

Total

45

Less than I Behveen l-3
month i months

Over 5
months Total

KshsKshs Kshs Kshs

I



Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (tvachakos Countl' Government) .4nnual Repon and FinancialStatementsfor The l'ear Ended 3Ut, June 2022

Notes to the Financial Staenents (Continued)

The company's Finance Departsnent is responsible for the de'eloprnent of detarled risk managcment
policies (subject to review and approval by'Audit and Risk Management Committee ) and for the
day+oday implementation of those policies. There has been no change to the entiw.s exposure to
rnarket risks or the way it manages and rneasures the risk.

a) Foreign currencl. risk
The entiqv has transactional currencv e\posures. Such exposure arises through purchases ofgoods
and sen'ices that are done in currencies other than the local culrenc.v. lnvoices denominated in
foreign currencies are paid after i0 da1 s frorn the date of the inr oice and conversion at the time of
palment is done using the prevailin-e exchan-re rate. The carning amount of the entity's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and rnonetar!, liabilities at the end of the reponing period
are as follows:

Th:.:'.n.q manages foreigrr exchange risk fi'orn future cornrnercial transactions and recognised assetsand liabilities by projecting expected sales proceeds and matching ,t 
" 

,u,n. *itt, 
"xpected 

paynents.

t

D

.tt 30 June 2022

Financral assets cash. debtorslnvestme

Lrabilities

Trade and other ables

Borrowr

Net forei curTen aSSet- Itabili

-{t 30 June 2022

Financial assets nts. cash, debtorslnl'estme
Liabilities

Trade and other les

Borrou in

\et forei curren asset liabilt t

-lo

KShs Other currcncir:s
hshs Kshs

Total

Kshs

KShs Other Total
Kshs Kshs Kshs



Kangundo l*vel 4 Hospital (Machakos Countl Government) Annual Report and Rnancial
Statementsfot The Year Ended 3th June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Foreign currencv sensifiviE analvsis

The followrng table demonstrates the eflbct on the conrpany's statement of financial

performance on apply'ing the sensitivitv for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate

of the three main transaction currencies. with all other variables held constant. The reverse

would also occur ifthe Kenya Shilling appreciated vvith all other variables held constant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the enrin,'s financial condition rnay be adversely affected as a

result of changes in interest rate levels. The conrpanl,'s ilterest rate risk arises fiom bank

deposits. This exposes the company' to cash flow' interest rate risk. The interest rate risk
exposure arises mainly fronr inlcrest rate lno\ crnenls on the conrpanv,s deposits.

lltanagement of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk. managernent has endeavoured to bank with institutions that

offer favourable interest rates

Sen si tivitv anal.v-sis

The entity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity
analysis. This involves detennining the impact on profit or loss of defined rate shifts. The
sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other vanables, in particular foreign
exchange rates. remain constant. The analy'sis has been performed on the same basis as the
prior year.

2021 I

Euro
I]SD
2022
Euro
USD

47
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,Yotes to the Financial Statenents (Continuetl)

Using the end of the yea-rfigures- the sensitir itr anall'sis indicates the impact on the statement
offinancial perfonnance ifcurrent floating inter.est rates increase/decrease by one
percentage point as a decrease,,increase of KShs xxx (20xx: KShs :cxx). A rate
increase/decrease of 5 9,6 w.ould result in a decrease,.increase irr surplus of KShs xxx (20xx _
KShs xrx).

iv) Capital Risk Management

The objective ofthe entiry's capital risk management is ro safeguard the Hospital,s ability
to continue as a going concem. The endn capital structure comprises of the folrowing
funds:

43. Related Party Balances
Nature of related parfy relationships

Entities and other parties related to the entit) include those parties who have the ability to
exercise control or exercise significant influence over ils operating and financial decisions.
Related parties include management personnel. their associates. and close fani\.members.
Government of Kenya

The Govemment of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the enrio.holding 100% o f the entity's cquity
interest The Government ofKenya has pro'rded fuli guaranrees to all long-term lenders of the entity.
both domestrc and extemal. Other relatetl parties include:

,.

a

Revaluation reser\ e

Retained earnings

Capital resen'e

Total funds

Total borrowings

Less: cash and bank balances

Net debt/ (excess c.a.sh and c'a.sh cquiralant.s)

Gearing

l8

)02U22 2020/21

KshsKshs
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Kangundo Level 4 Hospital (Machakos County Government) Annual Report and Financial
Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Oh June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

i) The National Government:

ii) The Parent Ministn,:

iii) Xpr:

iv) Xxr.

v) Xro<:

vi) Key management:

vii) Boardofdirectors;

Transactions * ith related parties

a) Services offered to related parties

Services to xxx

Sales of services to x\x
Total

b) Grants from the Government
Grants Aom County Government

Grants from the National Govemment Entities
Donations in kind
'f otal

c) Expenses incurred on behalf of related parff-,

Payments of salaries and wages for xxx employees
Payments for goods and sen.ices for xxr
Total

d) Key management compensation

Directors' emoluments

Compensation to the medical Sup

compe nsation to kcy-. management

Total

l9

Description 202il22
lfuhs

2020t2t

Kshs



.-Kangundo ltvel 4 Hospitar (.rrachakos Couno. (iovernment) .annuor Report and Financiar
Statements frtr The l'eur Ended 3dh .tune 2(,)2

,\otes to the Financial Statemenrs (L'ttntinuett)

11, Segmentlnformation

(llhere an organisarion optrutcs in riflcranr gcographicar rcgion.s or in tleparlmeru.s. IIrsAs ftlon segmental reporting rcqttirc,t an L,ntttr ro 1,17:anj ,;egmenial i4larmarioti if eaii geogmphicregittn or department to etwhle users un lerstond lha (ntih 't performunce" antt uiktcution .[ttsources to di.ferent segtnent.\ j

Contingent Liabilifies

.3

a

{5.

k;irc de ta ils)

16. CapitalCommitments

Ks hs Kshs
Authorised For

\uthorised And Contracted For

I

NR: ('apital commitments qrc c(.
di.sclosed in accordonce yith IpSA
h.v' the hoanl but ar the erui ol the
ongoing)

)mmihtent.t to he carriecl utl tn lhe next .linancial year arul arc\ l:. (-oprtal ctlrutritment.\ mal ha those thot have heen auhori.setl
t'eor hacl rutt heen contrac ted or those alreadl, csnlrasred .fbr arul

17 Events .{fter The Reporting period

There were no matenal adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

t8. Ultimate And Holding Entir.r.

The entirv* is a State corporation,' or a Serni- .{utonornous Government Agency under the
Minist-y ofxxr. Its ultimate parent is the Governrnent of Kenya.

.t9. Currencl
The financial statements are presented in Kenr.a Shillings (Kshs)

I
ourt case xxx against the cornpanvC

Bank teeS tn rh tvou o Sfguaran bsu d tar-\

Total

50

Capitd Commitments
2021/22

202U22 2020t21

Irshs Kshs

2020t21

'l'otal
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APPENDIX Il: Projects Implenrenterl by .l.he 
Entif"v

Proj ec ts

Projccts irnplcnrented by the Hospital Fundetl by devcloprrrent partners

s-rahrs ol' l)roicc ts tonrJrleliolr

I

I

)
I

52

I'ro.iec I 'l otul p roi ccl
( irst

'l'otlrl r:rpcrrtk.rl kr
tlatc

Conrplelion'2, to
tlalc

Budget ,\ctual Sources of lirnds

Project title l'rojecl N trrnher Donor Period/
durnlion

Don or conr rnilrrrenl Separnle donor
reporting required as
per the donor

Yes/No N<r

Consolidated in
thece finnncisl
ttRlemcnts
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Kungundo I'cvel 4llospitul (Muchakos Countlt (io|crnntent) Annuul Raporl und l,-inunciul ,ltutcnte nts Jbt. The yeur Endetl 3l/t,.lune 2022

APPENDIX IV: Inter-Entity Confirmation Letter
I I n sert .y our l-etterh eudl

llnlsart nanrc o/ funa/iciary ar11j11tI

I ln.tc rt Addras,s f

fi::il:J[.^$::'J:;,ff::fiXJ].il]'"Ti: 
the arnottnts vou receiverl and populate thc corumn r:r in rhe tabre berow prcase sign a,cr stamp this

Arnuurrts [)lshut.scd lr as al 30llr .lure2022SC/SAGA/Fun K Shs

Ret'erenco
Ntrntber

Date
[)isburserl

Recurrcnt ( A ) [)evcloprncrrt (B) Inter-
Mrnisturial

( (')

'lolal

(l)) (Ar BrC)

Amount Rcccivcd
by [bcneficiary

enliryl
(KShs) as at 30rr'

Junc 202 I

l.l

DifI'cre nccs
(K Shs)

(rr) .(I)-E)

'lolal

IIt confirm that the arnounts shown abovc are corrcct.s.r'the dale indicated

IIead of Accountants department of beneficiary entity:

l)a te
Name .,......,.,.......
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Confirmation of amounts received hy [Insert nnmc of bencliclary entiiyl as at J6rr, June 1,022
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APPUNDtx v Reporting of Climate Releyant Expenditures

Narne ol thc Organization I Kangundo Lcvcl 4 Flospital

-f'clephonc 
Nunrber.

linrail Address

Nanrc ol' Mcdical Supp/MD/l{catl, I)r. t)aniel Katua

N;'rre ,nrl co,tact dctairs.l c.rrracl pcrso, (ir) e;rsc oIarry crar rurti.rrs)

Description
' ' \'J: r l

Objcctivcs

(Jt 1)2 QJ Q{

l

54

Plojrrt
Namc Implemenfing

Partners

Project
Activities

Source Ol'
Funds



Kungundo Level I Itospital (Muchukos (oun1v 1\11v'sTltnrent),4nnuul Repttrt und r-inunciul statcnrentt- Jir The ycar Endetl 3uh ,lune 2022

APPtlNDtx Vt Disaster Expenditure Reporting T.emplate

Nanre of
Repolting
Ofl'icer

Ycar
Quarter

('ontact

details ol thc
lcporting
oflicer:

I:nrail -l'clcphonc

('olurrrrr I ('olurr.rrr ll ('olurnrr III (-oluurn IV ('oltrrrrrr V ( 'olurnrr Vl ('olunrn
VIII'rogl anrrrrc Sub-

pl ogramnre
I ) isaster
'l'ype

isaster relatcd Actrvity lhat
require expendrturc reporling

Categoly of d

arcrlncsst(jtion/l us ortsc/r'ccove /nriti

[ixpenditurc
itenr

A rrrur.rrr l
(Kshs )

('orr.rrttcltls

-.J \. 55

Enriry

Period to
which this
lcporl refcrs
(FY,


